
  
  

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

July 21, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1. Vouchers numbered 102492 through 102541 in the amount of $218,901.31 
2. Voucher numbered 102542 in the amount of $1,474.22 
3. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – April 21, 2020 
4. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – June 2, 2020 

 
C.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Olympic Region Local Programs Project Admin. Agreement (Access Shelton Phase III-B) – Presented     
           by City Engineer Ken Gill 
 
D.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken)  
      1.  Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
      2.  Ordinance No. 1949-0220 Single Room Occupancy – Presented by Community Development  
           Director Mark Ziegler 
      3.  Resolution No. 1160-0620 Master Fee Schedule Update – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      4.  Resolution No. 1161-0620 Surplus Vehicles – Presented by Police Chief Darrin Moody 
      5.  Resolution No. 1162-0620 Basin 3 Final Sewer Rehabilitation Final Acceptance – Presented by City     
           Engineer Ken Gill 
      6.  Resolution No. 1163-0620 Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amendment No. 1 –  
           Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
      7.  Resolution No. 1164-0620 Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amendment No. 1 – Presented by City Engineer  
           Ken Gill  
 
E.  Administration Reports 
      1.  City Manager Report 
 
F.  Announcement of Next Meeting – August 4, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
G.  Adjourn 

 
Special Note for Public Participation 

 
The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 

The public can provide comments via email or telephone. 
Email:  jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov 

Telephone:  (360) 432-5105 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

 



 

Updated 7/13/20 
 

 
2020 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 8/4 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Swearing in Police Officers 
• Resident Owned Communities (ROC) 
• LEAN Process 
• Chamber of Commerce – 1st Quarter LTAC 

Report 
• Chamber of Commerce – WSDOT Signage 

Business Agenda                                                              
• Master Franchise Agreement – Hood Canal 

Communications 
• Franchise Agreement – Comcast 
• Franchise Agreement – PUD #3 

Action Agenda 
• Olympic Region Local Programs Project 

Admin. Agreement – Wallace Kneeland & 
Shelton Springs Road Intersection 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 7/24 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/18 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Stormwater Rates 
• Water Meter AMI Project Update 

Business Agenda 
•                                                             

Action Agenda 
• Master Franchise Agreement – Hood Canal 

Communications 
• Franchise Agreement – Comcast 
• Franchise Agreement – PUD #3 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/7 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/1 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget 

Amendment for 2020 
Action Agenda 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/21 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 7/13/20 
 

•  
Administration Report 

•  
Tues. 9/15 
5:50 p.m. 

Regular SMPD 
Meeting 

Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/4 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/15 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• PW Capital Improvement Program 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1950-0320 Budget 

Amendment for 2020 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/4 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 10/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/25 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 10/20 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 10/9 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 11/3 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 10/23 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 7/13/20 
 

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 11/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 11/6 – 5:00 p.m. 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  









































 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Business Meeting Minutes April 21, 2020 

Virtual Platform - 6:00 p.m. 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – April 21, 2020 Page 1 of 2 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT 
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Public Works Director Jay Harris 
Megan Fiess Police Chief Darrin Moody 
Kathy McDowell   
Eric Onisko 
Joe Schmit   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order – 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance – Led by City Manager Jeff Niten 
Roll Call – City Clerk Donna Nault - All councilmembers were present 
  
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
No changes to the agenda 
 
City Manager Jeff Niten communicated the “Extension of Motion,” per Council Protocol 
Manual, Section 7.08 – telephonic participation is offered to the public, allowing a 30-
second delay in the Council’s response time to actions on the agenda in order to allow 
ample time for public comments.  City Clerk Donna Nault was directed to use a timer 
during Council meetings to ensure the 30-second allotted time is provided. 
 
A motion was made and seconded.  Passed. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Voucher number 101739 in the amount of $8,788.70 
2. Vouchers numbered 101740 through 101828 in the amount of $256,518.64 
3. Vouchers numbered 101834 through 101885 in the amount of $71,778.55 
4. Vouchers numbered 101891 through 101924 in the amount of $259,001.53 
5. Payroll Warrants numbered 3872 through 3876 and 5015 through 5059 and 5060 

through 5170. Warrants 101714 through 101735 in the amount of $743,912.55 
6. Voucher number 101947 in the amount of $14,444.46 
7. Minutes of Special Meeting on March 13, 2020 
8. Extension of Motion – Telephonic Participation at Council Meetings (Council Protocol 

Manual-Section 7.08) 
 
A motion was made and seconded to approve.  Passed. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – April 21, 2020 Page 2 of 2 
 

ACTION AGENDA 
1. Scarsella Contract for Coffee Creek Water Main Replacement – Presented by City 

Manager Jeff Niten 
 
City Manager Jeff Niten provide an overview of the removal and replacement of the City 
of Shelton’s water main at Coffee Creek.  Public Works Director Jay Harris stated that he 
looks forward to working with local design builders, which will help mitigate costs of 
future City projects. 
 
No public comments. 
 
A motion was made and seconded to approve.  Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
City Manager Jeff Niten  
 Introduction of City of Shelton’s newly hired Public Works Director Jay Harris 

o Jay Harris provided an introductory background of his work experience 
 Stimulus Bill 

o Currently there is a 50,000 minimum population requirement to receive funding 
from the Stimulus Bill. City Manager Niten is working with local and state 
representatives to request, at a Federal level, an amendment be made to the 
population requirement in order for the City of Shelton to receive financial 
assistance 

 Overview of Governor Jay Inslee’s Press Conference – April 21, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. 
o May 4, 2020 – Stay-At-Home Order remains in place 
o Health models are under review to assist in determining future dates to lift the 

Stay-At-Home Order 
o A projected timeframe for a vaccine to be ready for COVID-19, is twelve to 

eighteen months  
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
No new items for discussion. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
May 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURN 
As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:18 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Business Meeting Minutes June 2, 2020 

Virtual Platform – 6:00 p.m. 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2020 Page 1 of 3 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT 
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Director Finance Aaron BeMiller 
Megan Fiess City Engineer Ken Gill 
Kathy McDowell 
Eric Onisko 
Joe Schmit   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Councilmember James Boad 
Roll Call – City Clerk Donna Nault - All councilmembers present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
No changes to the agenda 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Voucher numbered 102209 in the amount of $5,705.56 
2. Vouchers numbered 102210 through 102249 in the amount of $49,907.61 
3. Vouchers numbered 102251 through 102299 in the amount of $931,023.81 
4. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – February 4, 2020  
5. Minutes of Regular Business Meeting – March 17, 2020 

 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the Consent Agenda as published.  Passed. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 

1. 2019 Budget Year End Review – Presented by Financial Director Aaron BeMiller 
 

The year-end 2019 financial actuals were presented to City Council as “unaudited.”  The 2019 
Financial Report was submitted to the State Auditor’s Office on May 29, 2020. The 2020 year-
to-date budget will be presented at the June 16, 2020 City Council Meeting. 
 
Financial Director Aaron BeMiller provided an overview of the 2019 Year-End Budget. City 
Councilmembers responses were as follows: 
 The City is better positioned financially than in 2017 
  Recognition given to the Finance Team for a job well done 

 
BUSINESS AGENDA 
No business items 
 
 



 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2020 Page 2 of 3 

ACTION AGENDA 
1. Aspect Consulting “C” Street Landfill Contract Change No. 6 – Presented by City Engineer 

Ken Gill 
 
City Council asked questions regarding the 2019 financials used to estimate the cost of 
the project.  It was reported that the Department of Ecology would have the final say on 
which remedial option of the project will be accepted.  If necessary, the public comment 
period will be extended for an additional 30 days, by the Department of Ecology.  Aspect 
Consulting and the City of Shelton are recommending remedial option one. 
 
Due to the virtual meeting platform, City Manager Niten requested a brief delay in a motion 
and decision by the Council to allow an opportunity for public comments.  
 
No public comments.  
 
A motion was made and seconded.  Passed. 
 

2. “C: Street Landfill Update – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill 
 
An overview of the “Public Review Draft Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study 
Report,” was provided.  The report will be available on the City of Shelton’s website and 
is open for public review and comment. 
 
No public comments.  

  
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

1. City Manager Report – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 
 Public comments received by email: 

• George Floyd killing – National issue  
• Under represented community needs to be protected 
• Economic Development Council – Downtown Shelton Protests  
• City of Shelton Police Department – commended for their professional handling 

of public protests 
• City of Shelton’s Public Relations – Communications to the community have 

been well covered 
 

 City of Shelton – Water/Sewer Bills. 
• In March, Public Works crews were able to do “actual” meter reads.  In April, 

due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Public Works crews were not able to complete 
actual meter reads, but estimated usage from prior months before the COVID-
19 pandemic. The estimates of prior month’s usage were low; which was due 
to unanticipated sunny weather, irrigation and the stay-at-home order from     
Governor Inslee, all of which caused an increase in water usage.  In May, 
Public Works crews were able to read meters, which reflected the actual 
water/sewer usage of customers.  Additionally, proration of water/sewer usage 
did not go into effect until June 1st.  May’s water/sewer bill will reflect usage for 
April and May, the underestimated cost of usage, less the estimated use. 
Customer Service is currently working reduced hours and are available until 
12:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  Beginning June 15, Customer Service 



 
 

Business Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2020 Page 3 of 3 

hours will increase to 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday and will 
be available to field questions from the public.   

 
 Governor Inslee issued a new Proclamation regarding the conduct of Council 

meetings.  Under the current Proclamation, City Council is limited to essential 
business items, no public attendance, and are not able to meet in person until June 
17.  The State Attorney General’s Office will issue a statement in the near future if 
any additional conditions will be required for City Council meetings.   

 
 City of Shelton’s parks were opened June 1st.  The COVID-19 pandemic is still in 

effect, and citizens are encouraged to recreate responsibly, keep social distance, 
and practice self and community care. 

 
 City Council Questions: 

 
• Since June 17th is a Wednesday and a non-scheduled City Council meeting 

date, should City Council hold a public City Council meeting on 
Wednesday, June 17th or wait until July? 
 

City Manager Niten reported moving Council meeting dates around may be difficult on the public 
since the current schedule is well established in our community. City Clerk Donna Nault reported 
the new Proclamation by Governor Inslee does not go into effect until 11:59 p.m., on June 17th.   

 
Unanimously, it was decided to maintain the current City Council meeting schedule. 

 
The Council thanked the Shelton Police Department, Mason County Sheriff’s Office, Central 
Mason Fire and other business partners for a fantastic job during local protests and thanked the 
community for their support during difficult times.  
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
June 16, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ADJOURN 
As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor       City Clerk 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item C1) 

Touch Date: 07/08/2020 
Brief Date:       07/21/2020 
Action Date:  08/04/2020 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Olympic Region Local Programs 
Project Admin. Agreement (Access 
Shelton Phase III-B) 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Olympic Region Local Programs 

Project Administration Agreement 
- 2019/21 State Transportation Budget 

Award Letter 
- Preliminary Plan   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

In early spring of 2018, City staff requested direction from the City Commissioners for their prioritization of 
future transportation projects. In May of 2018, the Commission authorized staff to use City transportation funds 
to start the design of several transportation projects in anticipation of future construction. Council approved a 
funding application level design contract with SCJ Alliance in June of 2018, for design of intersection 
improvements in the North Shelton area, known as Access Shelton Phase III A & B. In May of 2019, Council 
approved Amendment No. 1 to the design contract with SCJ Alliance, moving from application funding level 
design to full design. 

On June 14, 2019, the City received notice of an award from the WSDOT Local Programs Office, successfully 
securing $650,000 in the State Transportation Budget for completion of Access Shelton Phase III-B, the 
intersection of Wallace Kneeland and Shelton Springs Road. Between November 2019 and January 2020, the 
City received two notices from WSDOT, placing a hold on the previously awarded funds due to State 
Transportation Budget issues. In March 2020, a new notice was received from WSDOT un-pausing the funds, 
allowing the City to continue with development of the project. 

Due to limited City engineering staff, the City is not certified to manage a state-funded project without 
assistance from the WSDOT Local Programs Office. Prior to receiving a Funding Agreement with WSDOT, the 
City needs to sign the Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement, acknowledging the 
steps and procedures the City needs to perform throughout the project and as directed by the WSDOT Local 
Programs Office. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The execution of this Administration Agreement is the first step that needs to be taken, working towards 
obtaining a funding agreement.   
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Meeting WSDOT requirements requires additional city/consultant staffing; WSDOT provides an estimate of the 
additional needed project staffing in the 2nd paragraph of #9 in the attached Olympic Region Local Programs 
Project Administration Agreement.   
   



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests the Council concur to place this item on the action agenda at the August 4th meeting.   
   



Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement 

Shelton  Wallace Kneeland and Shelton Springs Road Intersection  
City Project Title 

 
This Agreement is entered into between the Washington State Department of Transportation 
(STATE) and the above named city (CITY). 
 
The CITY is not currently certified as having staff with the knowledge and experience to manage a 
state funded project, therefore WSDOT requires the above named project (Project) be administered 
under the supervision of the Washington State Department of Transportation Olympic Region Local 
Programs Office (Local Programs). 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:  
 
1. The CITY, operating under an extension of Local Programs Certification Acceptance (CA), 
agrees to administer this Project entirely in accordance with federal law, the Local Agency 
Guidelines (LAG), this Project Administration Agreement, and direction as provided by the Local 
Programs Engineer (LPE).  Failure to comply with federal law, the LAG, this Project Administration 
Agreement, or the direction of the LPE may result in loss of state funds. 
 
2. The STATE and the CITY have designated CA Managers as shown below: 
 
STATE: City 
Bryan Diaz,  Local Programs Engineer 
P.O. Box 47440 
Tumwater WA 98504-7440 
360-357-2630 
DiasB@wsdot.wa.gov  
 

Ken Gill, PE 
City Engineer  
525 W. Cota Street  
Shelton, WA 98584 
(360) 432-5144 
Ken.Gill@SheltonWA.gov 
 

 
The CITY CA Manager is the full time CITY employee that is in responsible charge of the Project.  
All formal submittals outlined herein, either from the STATE or the CITY, will be sent through the 
designated CA Manager. 
 
3. The CITY shall obtain approval from the LPE of the consultant solicitation method, 
advertisement and selection process for using a consulting firm for PE, Right of Way and 
Construction Engineering services.  In addition, the CITY shall obtain concurrence of Consulting 
Engineering Agreements and Supplements from the LPE before execution (see LAG chapter 31).  
The scope of the negotiated agreement for PE must complete the PE phase for the entire Project. 
 
4. Contract Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E) shall be prepared in accordance with 
the current State of Washington Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal 
Construction and adopted design standards (see LAG chapter 42 and 44).  The CITY shall submit the 
PS&E and contract to the LPE for review to ensure compliance with the LAG. 
 
5. Any deviation to design standards (see LAG chapter 42) must be stamped by a Professional 
Engineer licensed in the State of Washington.  The CITY shall submit the design deviation to the 
LPE for further processing and approval. 



City of Shelton 
Project Administration Agreement 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
6. The CITY shall be responsible for all required environmental documentation (SEPA and 
NEPA) and shall submit all required NEPA documentation to the LPE for further processing and 
approval (see LAG chapter 24).  The CITY shall be responsible for obtaining all required permits and 
approvals. 
 
7. No Right of Way (R/W) action shall proceed without concurrence from the WSDOT Local 
Agency Right of Way Coordinator.  The CITY shall follow current WSDOT approved R/W 
Procedures as described in the LAG (see LAG chapter 25).  The LPE and WSDOT Local Agency 
Right of Way Coordinator shall be advised of all pre-R/W meetings.  All acquisitions of R/W such as 
construction easements, donations, permits, etc. shall be certified by the CITY and the STATE. 
 
8. The CITY shall forward the proposed advertisement for bids to the LPE for approval.  Upon 
approval of the advertisement for bids and construction authorization from WSDOT, the CITY may 
begin advertisement for bids (see LAG chapter 46).  The CITY shall keep the LPE advised on any 
pre-award issues affecting the quality and timing of the contract.  Any required addenda to the 
contract documents must be approved by the LPE before it is issued. 
 
9. The CITY is required to utilize a Certified Acceptance agency or qualified CITY or 
consultant staff for construction management services.  Experience and expertise administering and 
managing construction projects funded by the state in accordance with the Standard Specifications 
for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction, the WSDOT Construction Manual, and the Local 
Agency Guidelines must be verifiable and acceptable. 
 
Your Project that utilizes state funds will require significant effort to manage and provide all of the 
documentation required by WSDOT.  Typically the following construction staffing is needed: 
 
• Project Manager (10 to 20 hrs / week throughout the construction phase)  
• Field Engineer (20 hrs / week; 2 weeks prior to project ad to the end) 
• Office Manager (10 to 20 hrs / week throughout the construction phase) 
• Project Lead Inspector (50 hrs / week; 2 weeks prior to project ad to the end) 
 
This staffing does not include materials testing technicians, materials lab services, or additional 
project inspectors for larger projects.  One person may fill multiple roles if qualified.  Adequate 
experienced staffing will help assure a successful federal aid project.  The CITY shall obtain 
approval of construction management staff, including Project Manager, Field Engineer, Office 
Manager and Lead Inspector, from the LPE before construction funds will be authorized. 
 
10. The CITY shall notify the LPE of the Bid Opening date and time.  The CITY shall transmit 
to the LPE, the Engineer’s Estimate, Bid Tabulations, UDBE Utilization Certificate and the UDBE 
Written Confirmation of the apparent low bidder. Upon approval by the LPE, the CITY may Award 
the Contract to the lowest responsive bidder (see LAG chapter 46). 
 
11. Upon the CITY execution of the contract for construction, the CITY shall administer and 
inspect the Project in accordance with the contract documents, WSDOT Standard Specifications for 
Road Bridge and Municipal Construction, the WSDOT Construction Manual, the Local Agency 
Guidelines and all applicable state and federal laws (see LAG chapter 52). 



City of Shelton 
Project Administration Agreement 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
12. Changes to the contract will be documented by change order as defined in the current edition 
of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction Section 1-04.4 
and consistent with the WSDOT Construction Manual.  The CITY shall negotiate, and document all 
change orders. Written authorization (email) by the LPE of proposed change order work, except for 
emergency work, must be received by the CITY prior to proceeding with the work.  Any work 
performed before receiving said authorization may be deemed ineligible for federal participation. 
 
Prior to obtaining the contractor’s signature on any change order the CITY shall provide a copy of 
the change order to the LPE for review and concurrence, along with separate justification for the 
change and an independent estimate of price and working day impacts.  A copy of all executed 
Change Orders shall be sent to the LPE. 
 
13. The CITY shall schedule inspection of the Project by Local Programs and receive Local 
Programs comments prior to providing the final “punch list” to the Contractor (see LAG chapter 53). 
 
14. If required by your grant, quarterly reports must be updated by the CITY before the 20th of 
March, June, September and December until the Project is complete and final bill is paid. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the party’s date 
signed last below. 
 
 
CITY OF SHELTON   
 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
Jeff Niten 
City Manager  
 
Date: _______________________________ 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
Bryan Dias 
Olympic Region Local Programs Engineer 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 





Bkilts
Text Box
B



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D1) 

Touch Date:  07/21/2020  
Brief Date:     07/21/2020  
Action Date:  07/21/2020  

Department: Community Development    
 
Presented By: Mark Ziegler   

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Rotating Art Gallery  

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
    Copies of the chosen art work  
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The Shelton Arts Commission is recommending the latest installation of the Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery 
project. As approved by the City Council, the Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery policy and procedure has been 
followed with the following tasks: 

1.  Call for Artists – The call for artists was distributed to local artists through press releases, art 
organizations, and galleries. The deadline for artist submittals was July 3, 2020. One artist 
submitted proposals for the gallery.  

2.  The Shelton Arts Commission met on July 7, 2020 to jury the submittals.  
3.  On July 21, 2020, the Shelton Arts Commission is presenting the recommended art to the City 

Council for approval. Upon approval, the art will be installed on August 4, 2020 and in place 
through October 30, 2020. 

The selected artist and work includes: 
ARTIST MEDIUM TITLES 

Pam McKinnie  Acrylic, Mixed Media  Tree of Life 1 & 2, Emerging from 
the Flames, Healing of Mother 
Earth, Faith in our Future 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends:  “I move to approve the Shelton Arts Commission’s recommendations for placement in the 
Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery.” 



 Emerging from the Flame  



 Faith in our Future  



 Healing of Mother Earth  



 

 

Tree of Life 1 



 

Tree of Life 2  



Council Briefing Form   

 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D2) 

Touch Date:  04/21/2020 
Brief Date:     07/07/2020 
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Department:  Community Development 
 
Presented By:  Mark Ziegler 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The City of Shelton entered into a lease agreement with Panza for approximately 3.233 acres located near the Shelton 
Springs Road and North 13th Street intersection for the development of a housing program and ancillary services for 
homeless veterans. The lease agreement stipulates Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) compliance with development 
standards and the necessary amendments to allow Single Room Occupancy (SRO) as defined. SMC Chapters 18 
Building, Construction, Mobile/Manufactured Homes and Flood Damage Prevention and Chapter 20 Zoning 
require amendments to meet the intent and allow for the construction of housing units outlined in the lease 
agreement.   
 
An additional amendment is proposed to Chapter 20.32.110(8) deleting redundant language in this section.  
 

       ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
       N/A  

   
       BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
       Adoption of the amendments has no budget impact. 
    
      PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

           Public notice was published in the newspaper of record on June 25, 2020. 
 

      STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
      Staff recommends:  “I move to adopt Ordinance No. 1949-0220 an ordinance relating to land use zoning, adding a 
      new section to the Shelton Municipal Code and amending chapter 20.32.110, concerning single room occupancy 
      developments.” 
       

 

 
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Single Room Occupancy 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     Ordinance No. 1949-0220 
     Panza lease agreement 
      
      
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      



 
ORDINANCE NO.1949-0220 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 

RELATING TO LAND USE AND ZONING, ADDING A NEW SECTION 18.02.110 TO 
THE SHELTON MUNICIPAL CODE AND AMENDING CHAPTER 20.32.110, 

CONCERNING SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY DEVELOPMENTS. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Shelton enacts land use, development, building, mechanical, fire and other 
codes to protect lives and assure public safety; and 
 
WHEREAS, in May of 2019 the City Council executed a Lease Agreement with Panza, D/B/A 
Quixote Communities, for construction of a Tiny Homes Village to house low income veterans and 
other tenants; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Panza Lease authorizes construction of housing units in a Single Residential 
Occupancy (“SRO”) format not currently authorized under the Shelton Municipal Code; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to allow construction of residential units in a SRO format in 
limited circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the proposed amendments at a properly noticed 
public meeting and held a properly noticed public hearing on May 5th, 2020, so as to receive public 

testimony; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.106, the City provided the Washington State 
Department of Commerce with a 60-day notice of its intent to adopt the amendment(s) to its Unified 
Development Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, an environmental review of the proposed amendments to the Development Code was 
conducted in accordance with the requirement of the State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”), and 
a non-project SEPA Determination of Non-significance was issued for the amendments on April 21, 
2020, which was transmitted to relevant State and local agencies, published in the Shelton/Mason 
County Journal and posted in public places; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the entire public record, public comments, 
written and oral; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered this Ordinance, together with all public 
comment, and has determined that the proposed amendments are in accord with the Comprehensive 
Plan, will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or general welfare, and are in the best interest 
of the citizens of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, do ordain as 
follows: 
 



Section 1. A new section 18.02.110 is added to the Shelton Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 
18.02.110 Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit. 
 
“Single Room Occupancy Sleeping Unit” (sleeping unit) is a structure that provides living units that have separate 
sleeping areas, each of which must be at least 120 square feet and have access to both sanitary facilities and a full 
common kitchen facility, subject to the following: 
 

A. Sanitary Facilities shall include: 
 

1. At least one flush toilet, lavatory basin, and bathtub or shower must be supplied for each sleeping 
unit.  Lavatory basins and showers must have adequate quantities of hot and cold running water. 

2. All sanitary facilities must be in proper operating condition and be adequate for personal 
cleanliness and the disposal of human waste.  The facilities must utilize an approvable public or 
private disposal system as required by Title 14 of the Shelton Municipal Code and public works 
standards. 

 
B. Space and security. 

1. Each sleeping unit must have 120 square feet of floor space and at least 4 square feet of closet 
space. 

2. Exterior doors and windows accessible from the outside must be lockable 
 

C. Access. 
1. Residents must be able to access their sleeping unit, sanitary, and kitchen facilities without passing 

through another sleeping unit. 
2. Kitchen and sanitary facilities may be located in a detached community building located on the 

same site as the sleeping units. 
D. Use and location. 

1. Single Room Occupancy units may only be located within Neighborhood Residential Zone and 
Mixed Use Zones. A Planned Unit Development permit shall be required for all single room 
occupancies. 

2. Sleeping units shall not be for transitory housing (the rental of any building or portion thereof used 
for the purpose of providing lodging for periods of less than 30 days. 

3. Sleeping units shall either be owner-occupied, or shall provide housing for a tenant, pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement. 

4. The following uses are not considered single room occupancy sleeping units: boarding houses, 
hotels and motels, extended stay hotels and motels, assisted living facilities, convalescent/nursing 
homes, and facilities which provide short-term or long-term care for tenants suffering from 
physical, mental or other disabilities.  

 
Section 2. Shelton Municipal Code Section 20.32.110 is amended to read as follows: 
 
20.32.110 Form and configuration in residential and mixed use. 
 
A.    Residential PUDs and residential components of mixed use PUDs may utilize the following techniques and 
incorporate the following uses: 

1.    Four-unit dwelling clusters with party walls; 

2.    Town houses or patio homes with party walls; 

3.    Double-row houses with party side and rear walls; 

4.    Condominium ownership in multifamily buildings; 

5.    Varied lot size divisions; 



6.    Establishment of greenbelts, parks or other open area, or community buildings or recreation facilities; 

7.    Zero-lot line developments; 

8.     Single Room Occupancy (SRO) Residential Development as defined in Shelton Municipal Code Section 
18.02.110. 

9.    Multifamily project developments (i.e., apartment buildings/complexes).   

10.    Neighborhood commercial uses as defined in SMC 20.44.290. 
 
 
Section 3. Effective date.  This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after its passage, 
approval, and publication as required by law. 

 

INTRODUCED the 7th day of July 2020.  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County Washington at a regular open 
public meeting held the 21st day of July 2020. 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

___________________    __________________ 
City Clerk Nault      Mayor Dorcy  
 
        
         
        
 

































Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D3) 

Touch Date: 06/29/2020 
Brief Date:       07/07/2020 
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Reading of Resolution 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By:  Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
     Master Fee Schedule Update 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
     Resolution 1160-0620 
     Exhibit “A” 
      
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Master Fee Schedule is intended to recover costs associated with services that the City provides, notably 
building, land use, and public works permitting activities to ensure a livable community that meets Washington 
State Building code requirements, engineering standards, and creates the type of environment our community 
expects. 
 
This minor update is a companion piece to Ordinance 1949-0220 adopting standards for Tiny Homes within the 
City of Shelton.  As agreed during negotiations for the Veterans Village project, water and sewer General 
Facilities Charges (GFC) will be twenty-five percent (25%) of the standard charge for a dwelling unit within the 
City due to the smaller size and resulting water consumption anticipated by tiny homes.   
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Council may adopt or revise the attached draft Master Fee Schedule as desired. 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Water and Sewer funds will be impacted slightly, however Tiny Homes that conform to the standards outlined 
SMC 18.02.110 are limited to single occupants and will use substantially less water than a traditional single 
family dwelling unit.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

   Information regarding this proposal is available through the City Clerk’s office. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends the Council approve Resolution 1160-0620 by making the following motion: 
“I move to approve Resolution 1160-0620 as presented” 
 



07/14/20 1 4:50 PM 

RESOLUTION NO.  1160-0620 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION  
NO. 1155-0120 (MASTER FEE SCHEDULE) 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is the general policy of the city to establish fees that are reflective of the cost of services provided 
by the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council approved Resolution No. 1155-0120 at a regular meeting held on February 
4, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council desires to update fees and charges with the Master Fee Schedule; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council authorizes the Mayor to sign Resolution 1160-0260. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Public Interest.  The City Council for the City of Shelton, Washington finds that it is in the public 
interest to amend and supersede the previously adopted Master Fee Schedule to address costs associated with 
providing services. 
 
Section 2.  Supersede previous Resolutions.  This resolution inclusive of Exhibit “A” attached hereto shall 
supersede in its entirety Resolution No. 1155-0120 previously approved by the Shelton City Council. 
 
Section 3.  Adjustments.  The Shelton City Council amends the Master Fee Schedule to include Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 4.  Effective date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect on August 1, 2020. 
 
INTRODUCED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 7th day of July 2020. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on the 21st day of July 2020. 
 
 
 
 
                                                                          __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Dorcy 
 
   
___________________________  
City Clerk Nault    
     
 
                          



 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

City of Shelton 
525 W. Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington  98584 
Master Fee Schedule 
RES NO. 1160-0620 

Exhibit “A” 
 

 

General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 2 

Animal Shelter……………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 3 

Civic Center………………………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 3 

Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 4 

Parks and Recreation…………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 4 

Police Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 4 

Community Development…………………………………………………………………………………………....... pg. 5 

Planning………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 5 

Building……………………………………………………………………..………………………………… pg. 6 

  Fire……………………………………………………………………….……………………………..….pg. 14 

Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 14 

Sanitary Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 15 

Reclaimed Water……………………………………………………………………………….………. pg. 16 

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. pg. 17 

Misc. and Grade and Fill…………………………………………………………………..………… pg. 18 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 
 

Type of Permit        Fee 

 

General Government           

Annual Report $10.00 

Documents provided at Public Hearings 
Audio Reproduction (when requested within 
one year of hearing).  *Other than Police 

$0.00 (within one year) 
$10.00 (requested after one year of hearing 

date) 
Video Reproduction * Other than Police $10.00 
Copies  $0.15 per page 

Scanned copies to electronic format $0.10 per page 

Files or attachments for electronic delivery $0.05 per four (4) attachments 

Gigabyte of electronic records for 
transmission 

$0.10 per gigabyte 

Storage media, container, envelope, postage 
and delivery charge 

Actual Cost 

R.C.W. 42.56.120 (2) (b) (c) and (e)  

New and renewal of Business License $50.00 

Sexually Oriented Business License $100.00 

Sexually Oriented Manager or Entertainer $50.00 

Taxi Operator License (per operator) $40.00 

Taxi Vehicle License (per vehicle) $40.00 

Returned Check charge $40.00 

VISA/MC chargeback $35.00 

Special Event Permit $35.00 (An additional $25.00 is due for 
applications received 25 business days or less 

prior to the event).  
City Special Event services (barricades, 
garbage, etc.) 

$25.00 (per event, per service) 

Displays on City message boards $30.00 

Map Reproduction Color 36 x 48 $18.00 
Color 24 x 36 $12.00 

Special Order 36 x 48 $30.00 



 

3 
 

Special Order 24 x 36 $20.00 
Black Line $1.00 (Per square foot) 

 

Animal Shelter 

Adoption Fee $80.00 ($100.00) 

Adoption Fee with Rabies Vaccine $112.50 

Animal License ($5.00 discount for 

spayed/neutered dogs) No fee for service 

dogs. Senior citizen 65 yrs. and older 50% off 

licensing.  

$15.00($30.00) 

Rabies Vaccination $32.50 

Surrender of Dog (City residents only) $25.00($40.00) 

Animal Impound (City residents) First impoundment $30.00($50.00) 
Second impoundment $50.00($75.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment $100.00($150.00) 
All impound fees shall also be charged unpaid animal 

license fees.  
Boarding fee (over 48 hours) $15.00 per day($30.00) 

Lost license or transfer of license $5.00($10.00) 

Non-resident animal impound fee First impoundment $80.00($150.00) 
Second impoundment $130.00($200.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment $180.00($250.00) 
 

Civic Center Rental  

Damage Deposit $300.00 

Kitchen $50.00 

Black drapery $2.00 (per 10 foot section) 

Staging $10.00 (use of 1 – 4 sections) 

Equipment Rental 25” TV Monitor/VCR $10.00 
Multimedia Projector $20.00 

Coffee Service $25.00 (per gallon) 



 

4 
 

Meeting rooms $22.00 per hour for each 600 sq. ft. 

Main meeting room $75.00 per hour 

 

Code Enforcement 

Infraction Issued 
Fees including site visit(s), photos, file 
creation, documentation, etc.  Plus itemized 
fees to include attorney costs, additional 
tracked staff time and costs, title searches, 
service, court filing fees, which may be 
included in the city request for abatement 
cost reimbursement per R.C.W. 35.21.955 

$68.00 minimum 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks Master Plan $20.00 

Ballfields and Playfields (Callanan Park/Loop 
Field. 

Field Rental $12.00 per hour 
Softball Field preparation $20.00 each field 

City recreation programs Actual cost of program 

Refunds Before first class: %100 
Before second class: %80 

Before third class: %50 
After third class: No refunds 

Picnic Shelters $12.50 per hour.  Two hour minimum, plus 
applicable fees for garbage, labor, misc. 

Commercial Park (Use by individual, 
company, corporation, business or similar for 
the purposes of selling, distributing, or 
promotion.  

$25.00 

 

Police Department  

Fingerprints $60.00 

Video Reproduction Time and material 

Audio Reproduction Time and material 



 

5 
 

Weapons Permit  $49.25 

Weapons Permit renewal  $32.00 

Weapons Permit renewal – late application $42.00 

Weapons Permit – replacement $10.00 

Weapons Dealer Permit $125.00 

Excess Alarm fee $25.00 after three (3) false alarms 

 

Community Development – Planning 

Address Assignment $100.00 

Annexation  $1,200.00 plus $40.00 per acre or fraction 
thereof.   

Appeal to the Hearing Examiner Individual - $1,000.00 
H.O.A. - $500.00 

Boundary Line Adjustment $315.00 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,600.00 

Comprehensive Plan document $35.00 

Conditional Use Permit $2,700.00 

SEPA $300.00 

EIS $1,400.00 plus consultant costs 

Fence $75.00 residential 
$180.00 commercial 

Forest Practices Application $350.00 

Plat/Binding Site Plan Preliminary:  $3,300.00 plus $40.00 per lot 
Extension: $200.00 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00  
Planned Unit Development Preliminary:  $3,000.00 plus $25.00 per lot 

Extension:  $200.00 
Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 

Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 
Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00   



 

6 
 

Parcel combination $320.00  

Pre-submittal conference $150.00 

Short Plat $920.00 

Site Plan Review $1,200.00 

Site Plan amendment $110.00 

Variance Permit $2,700.00 

Zone Change  $2,400.00 

Zoning Letter $45.00 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $435.00 

Signs $50.00 when no building permit required 
$55.00 per square foot valuation with 

building permit 
 

Shoreline Specific applications  

Shoreline Management Program document $35.00 

Shoreline Statement of Exemption $170.00 
Substantial Development Permit $560.00 

Public Hearing Required: $2,300.00 
Shoreline Conditional Use Permit $2,300.00 

Shoreline Variance $2,300.00 

 

Community Development – Building 

After Hours Inspections (Regular business 
hours 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday). 

$70.00 per hour (two hour minimum) 

Re-inspection fee $70.00 per hour (one hour minimum) 

Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Additional plan review required for plan 
changes. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Note:  For the building fees above, or the 
total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest. This cost shall 

 



 

7 
 

include supervision, overhead, equipment, 
hourly wages and fringe benefits of the 
employees involved. 
Actual costs include administrative and 
overhead costs. 
Building Valuation 

*NOTE: all footnotes of Building Valuation 
Data as published by ICC shall apply 

1) New construction, and remodels greater 
than 50%: of "R" occupancies   The City of 
Shelton will utilize the International Code 
Council’s “Building Valuation Data Table” on 
a two-year lag as published in the August 
edition of the Building Safety Journal.  The 
square footage valuations from this table will 
be implemented on the first day of 
September following publication and remain 
in force through August of the following year. 
2) Private garages, storage buildings, green 
houses and similar structures shall be valued 
as Utility, Miscellaneous  
3) Remodels less than 50% shall be valued at 
50% of the table value from the ICC Building 
Valuation Data for occupancy specified. 

Bulkheads $20.00 per cubic foot 

Building Permit 

NOTE:  Washington State surcharge applies:  

$25.00 Commercial, $6.50 Residential. 

 

Valuation: 
$1.00 to $500.00: $25.00 

$501.00 to $2,000.00:  $25.00 and $3.00 per 
each additional $100 or fraction thereof and 

including $2,000 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00:  $70.00 and $14.00 

for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $25,000 

$25,000.00 to $50,000.00:  $390.00 and 
$10.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $50,000 
$50,001.00 to $100,000.00:  $640.00 and 

$7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $100,000 

$100,001.00 to $500,000.00:  $1,000.00 and 
$6.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $500,000 
500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00:  $3,400.00 and 



 

8 
 

$5.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $1,000,000 

$1,000,000 and up: $5,700 and $7.00 for 
each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof to 

and including $1,000,000  
 
       

Maximum Building Permit fee $50,000.00 

Early Foundation Permit/Early start 
agreement (Early foundation permit for 
commercial/industrial building will be 
deducted from permit fee upon full 
submittal. 

25% of building permit fee 

Demolition permit $120.00 plus State surcharge 

Reroof – residential only     $115.00 

Reroof –commercial 

 per square valuation is used to determine 

valuation 

$275.00 per square   - 

Class A&B (hotmop/torchdown) 

$250.00 per square  - 

Composition( roll/3 tab) 

$325.00 per square  - 

Composition with plywood replacement 

$300.00 per square  -  Metal 

$275.00 per square  -  Shake 

$300.00 per square    -   Shingle 

Windows $25.00 first window, $7.00 for each 

additional window 

Reissuance of lost permit card $30.00 

Reissuance of plan package $140.00 

Stock Plans 50% of the ICC fee 

Solid Fuel/Gas insert $140.00 

Hearing Examiner appeal $2,400.00 



 

9 
 

Request for Reconsideration $500.00 

Investigation fee $70.00 per hour 

Mechanical Permit Each mechanical permit:  $25.00 
 
FURNACE: 
For issuing each supplemental permit for 
which the original permit for the original 
permit has not expired, been canceled, or 
final:  $8.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3kW):  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW):  
$20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each floor 
furnace, including vent:  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
suspended heater, recessed wall heater on 
floor-mounted unit heater:  $16.00 
 
Appliance Vents: 
For the installation, relocation or 
replacement of each appliance vent and not 
included in an appliance permit:  $8.00 
 
Repairs or Additions: 
For the repair of, or addition to each heating 
appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, 
including installation of controls regulated by 



 

10 
 

the Mechanical Code:  $15.00 
 
 
Boilers, Compressors, and Absorption 
Systems: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption 
system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW):  $15.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over three horsepower 
(10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 
100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW):  $30.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW):  $40.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $60.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $100.00 
 
Air Handlers: 
For each air-handling unit to and including 
10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 



 

11 
 

L/s), including ducts attached thereto:  
$12.00 
 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-
handling unit, which is a portion of a factory- 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, 
evaporative cooler or absorption unit for 
which a permit is required elsewhere in the 
Mechanical Code for each air-handling unit 
over 10,000 cfm (4719 L/s):  $20.00 
 
Evaporative Coolers: 
For each evaporative cooler other than 
portable type:  $12.00 
 
Ventilation and Exhaust: 
For each ventilation fan connected to a single 
duct:  $8.00 
 
For each ventilation system which is not 
portion of any heating or air-conditioning 
system authorized by a permit:  $12.00 
 
For the installation of each hood which is 
served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood:  $12.00 
 
Incinerators:   
For the installation or relocation of each 
domestic-type incinerator:  $20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
commercial or industrial-type incinerator:  
$16.00 
 
Miscellaneous: 
For each appliance or piece of equipment 
regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for 
which no other fee is listed in the table:  
$12.00 



 

12 
 

Mobile/Manufactured Home set-up Individual Lot:  $472.00 
Park Set:  $165.00 

NOTE:  Includes 4x4 landing 
Mobile Home Title Eliminations $30.00 

Plan Review (All types other than 
Mechanical) 
*NOTE: Commercial kitchen based on project 
valuation of engineer's written estimate. 

65% of Permit fee 
Mechanical only:  25% of Permit fee 

Plumbing Permit Each permit:  $25.00 
Each supplemental permit:  $10.00 

 
NOTE: Unit Fee Schedule in addition to above 

 
For each plumbing fixture on one trap or a 
set of fixtures on one trap (including water, 
drainage piping, and backflow protection 
therefore):  $8.00 
 
For each building sewer and each trailer park 
sewer:  $16.00 
 
Rainwater systems per drain (inside building):  
$8.00 
 
For each cesspool where permitted:  $27.00 
 
For each private sewage disposal system:  
$45.00 
 
For each water heater and/or vent:  $8.00 
 
For each industrial waste pretreatment 
interceptor including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning 
as fixture traps:  $8.00 
 
For each installation, alteration or repair of 
water piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each:  $8.00 
 



 

13 
 

For each repair or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping, each fixture:  $8.00 
 
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one 
meter including backflow protection devices 
therefore:  $8.00 
 
For each backflow protective device other 
than atmospheric type vacuum breakers: 

• 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller:  
$8.00 

• over 2 inch (51 mm) diameter:  
$16.00 

Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers: 
• 1 to 5:  $5.00 
• over 5, each:  $2.00 

Propane Tanks and Piping (above and below 
ground) 

$12.00 per tank 

Refund: 
2015-IBC Section 109.6 / 2015-IRC Section 
R108.5 

The building official may authorize refunding 
on not more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done 
under a permit issued in accordance with this 
code.  The building official may authorize   
refunding of not more than seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the plan review fee paid 
when an applicant for a permit for which a 
plan review fee has not been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan 
reviewing is done. The building official shall 
not authorize refunding of any fee paid 
except on written application filed by the 
original permittee no later than 180 days 
after the date of fee paid. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

14 
 

Fire Department  

 

Automatic Fire Alarm $350.00 

Flow Test (one-time) $140.00  

Fixed Fire Suppression $200.00 

Auto Sprinkler System $350.00 

Commercial Project Plan Review $325.00 up to 3,600 square feet 

$400.00 3,600 to 10,000 square feet 

$475.00 over 10,000 square feet 

Overtime Plan Review $101.00 per hour 

Public Fireworks Display $100.00 

 

 

Public Works 

Right-of-Way and Obstruction Permits Short term maintenance permit:  $45.00 
Temporary Construction of Heavy Use 
Permit:  $65.00 plus inspection fees 
Fixture and Encroachment Permit:  $65.00 
$15.00 annual renewal fee. If for sidewalk 
café, add $280.00/hr. review fee. 

Fine for Work in Right of Way without 
Permits 

$250.00 plus standard permit fee 

Special Development Studies:  Traffic Impact 
Reports, Hydrology studies, and similar. 

Contract Consultant fees 

Traffic Impact Fee $3,735.71 for SFR/varies based on use.  ORD. 
1907-1017 Exhibit B 

Civil Plan review $225.00 per hour 
Inspection Fees $85.00 per hour 
Latecomer Agreement  $280.00 
Right-of-Way vacation $500.00 
Sewer Connection Charges Utility Application Permit:  $65.00 plus 

applicable GFC 
Class A Bio-Solids Fertilizer fee $20.00 per 1.66 cyd bag 



 

15 
 

 

Sewer GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4" 1.00 $3,258.00 

1” 2.50 $8,145.00 

1.5” 5.00 $16,290.00 

2” 8.00 $26,064.00 

3” 16.00 $48,870.00 

4” 25.00 $81,495.00 

6” 50.00 $162,900.00 

8” 80.00 $260,640.00 

*Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of the equivalent 
charge above. 
Sewer GFC (Grandview Heights only) 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4“ 1.00 $1,629.00 

1“ 2.50 $4,072.00 

1.5” 5.00 $8,145.00 

2” 8.00 $13,032.00 

3” 16.00 $24,435.00 

4” 25.00 $40,725.00 

6” 50.00 $81,495.00 

8” 80.00 $130,320.00 

 

Reclaimed Water 

Water Meter Charge         Fee 

3/4" Meter $238.16 



 

16 
 

1” $354.91 

1.5” $760.43 

2” $1,029.38 

3” $2,018.65 

4” $3,170.16 

6” $4,298.21 

Above 6” $6,095.57 

 

 

 

 

Reclaimed Water GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4”  1.00 $326.00 

1” 2.50 $815.00 

1.5” 5.00 $1,629.00 

2” 8.00 $2,606.00 

3” 16.00 $4,887.00 

4” 25.00 $8,150.00 

6” 50.00 $16,290.00 

8” 80.00 $26,064.00 

 

 

 

Water Fees 

Water Turn off (regular business hours) $100.00 



 

17 
 

Water Turn off (after business hours) $250.00 

Water Turn on (regular business hours, 60 
days or more since turn off.  59 days or less 
no charge) 

$135.00 

Water Turn on (after business hours) $275.00 

Annual Hydrant Water Use permit $70.00 

Hydrant Water Load $145.00 (Commercial consumption charge 
per SMC 15.28.050) 

Hydrant Meter Fee and Deposit $70.00 plus $750.00 refundable deposit 

Hydrant Gate Valve Fee and Deposit $35.00 plus $300.00 refundable deposit 

Hydrant Wrench Fee and Deposit $35.00 plus $50.00 refundable deposit  

Fine for connection to hydrant without 
permit 

$1,000.00 

Fine for connection to hydrant without meter $500.00 

Fine for unauthorized 
connection/disconnection of water service 

$500.00 

Utility Permit  $170.00 plus applicable GFC 

 

Water Meter Charge 

3/4" meter $238.16 

1” meter $354.91 

1.5” meter $760.43 

2” meter $1,029.38 

3” meter $2,018.65 

4” meter $3,170.16 

6” meter $4,298.21 

Above 6” meter $6,095.57 

 

Water Meter GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 



 

18 
 

3/4” 1.00 $1,260.00 

1” 2.50 $3,150.00 

1.5” 5.00 $6,300.00 

2” 8.00 $10,080.00 

3” 16.00 $18,900.00 

4” 25.00 $31,500.00 

6” 50.00 $63,000.00 

8” 80.00 $100,800.00 

*Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of the equivalent   
charge above. 
 

Misc.  

Commercial Fire Line No Charge 

Backflow Testing No Charge 

 

Fill and Grade 

Fill and Grading Plan Review $320.00  

Inspection $80.00 

 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D4) 

Touch Date:  05/26/2020  
Brief Date:     07/07/2020       
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Reading of Resolution 

Department:  Police/Fire 
   
Presented By:  Darrin Moody/Mike Patti  

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Surplus Vehicles 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Resolution No. 1161-0620 
  Vehicle Information from Police Dept. 
  Vehicle Information from Fire Dept. 
   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Police Department has three patrol vehicles that have well exceeded their life as patrol vehicles. Two of the  
vehicles are 2004, and one is a 2003. They are Crown Victoria police vehicles, which are no longer made by  
Ford.  These vehicles have become too costly to maintain, and it is not safe to continue using them as police  
patrol vehicles. 
 
Per the amended ILA for Mason County Fire District #5 to provide EMS and Fire Protection Services 
to the City of Shelton, dated December 20, 2010, Central Mason Fire and EMS has determined that the 
following equipment, (Engine 72 – 1990 Fire Engine, Utility 71 – 1991 Pickup Truck, Engine 71 – 2000 Fire 
Engine) is surplus to the needs of the City of Shelton and Fire District #5 and is returning the 
vehicles to the City of Shelton for auction. 

 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Police Department and Fire Department would like to surplus the listed vehicles for auction.  

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
The estimated value of the three patrol vehicles is approximately $6,000 total.  The estimated value of the two 
fire engines and one pickup truck is approximately $11,500 total. 
   
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Ask for a first reading of Resolution No. 1161-0620 and “I move to approve Resolution No. 1161-0620 to 
surplus used police patrol vehicles, as well as surplus fire vehicles.”   



07/14/20 1 4:54 PM 

RESOLUTION NO. 1161-0620 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON DECLARING CITY 
VEHICLES SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY, AND DISPOSING OF SUCH 

VEHICLES FOR THE COMMON BENEFIT. 
   

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.010 and 35A.79.010 allow a municipal code city to dispose of surplus 
property for the common benefit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City owns vehicles that are no longer needed in order to perform the business of the 
Police Department and Fire Department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 
 
 

1. All property of the City of Shelton Police Department and the City of Shelton Fire Department, 
shown on Exhibit “A”, is hereby declared surplus to the needs of the City. 

 
2. Disposal of property on Exhibit “A” is declared to be for the common benefit. 

 
3. The property herein declared surplus will be disposed of in accordance with City Policy. 

 
 
 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 21st day of July 2020. 
 

 
 
 

 
                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



07/14/20 2 4:54 PM 

 
Exhibit “A” for Resolution No. 1161-0620 

 
 
 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
City Asset # Description    License # Value__________ 
 
  2004 Ford Crown Victoria  19982D  $1000 
 
  2004 Ford Crown Victoria  19983D  $1000 
   
  2003 Ford Crown Victoria                       37203D             $1000 
 
 
 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
City Asset # Description    License # Value__________ 
 
Engine72 1990 E-One “Hush” Fire Engine  07026D  $5000 
 
Engine71 2000 E-One “Hush” Fire Engine  19909D  $5000 
   
Utility71 1991 GMC Pickup Truck  07035D  $1500 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 
 
DATE: May 22, 2020 
  
TO: Chief Moody 
  
FROM: Calvin Moran 
  
RE: Surplus Cars 
 
 
 

 

 
The following cars are recommended to be declared surplus and sold.  
 

(1) Plate# 19982D, VIN 2FAFP71W04X180790, 2004, Ford Crown Victoria, black 
and white, miles 80,000, high mileage, high idle hours, paint coming off roof, 
hood and driver’s door. 16-year-old patrol car. Per Edmunds.com worth about 
$1,897.00, if sold to a private party. 
 

(2) Plate# 19983D, VIN 2FAFP71WX3X222347, 2004, Ford Crown Victoria, 
black, miles 100,000, high mileage, high idle hours, 16-year-old patrol car. 
Per Edmunds.com worth about $2,345.00, if sold to a private party. 

 
 

(3) Plate# 37203D, VIN 2FAHP71W33X194643, 2003 Ford Crown Victoria, 
black, miles 135,000, high mileage, high idle hours, some of the emergency 
equipment no longer works, paint coming off rear doors, 17-year-old patrol 
car. Per Edmunds.com worth $2,087.00, if sold to a private party.       

 



Central Mason Fire & EMS 

Mason County Fire Protection District 5 
 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
“preservation of life, health, property and the environment” 

    

PO Box 1910 360-426-5533 360-427-9438 Fax 
122 W Franklin St 360-275-2889 www.cmfe.org 
Shelton WA 98584 info@cmfe.org facebook.com/CMFE5/ 

 
 
DATE:  June 23, 2020 
 
TO:    DONNA NAULT, CITY CLERK 

FROM:  MIKE PATTI, FIRE CHIEF 

RE:    Surplus Fire Apparatus 

 

Per the Amended Inter-Local Agreement for Mason County Fire District #5 to provide 

EMS and Fire Protection Services to the City of Shelton, dated December 20, 2010, 

Central Mason Fire and EMS hereby returns to the City of Shelton, the following 

vehicles as identified in Item #6: 

• Engine 72, 1990 Fire Engine, License #07026D, VIN# 46JDBAA85L1003257. E-One 

“Hush”, 86,302 miles. Stress fractures in body. Rust in tank.  Estimated value at 

approximately $5,000.00. 

 

• Engine71, 2000 Fire Engine ,License #19909D,VIN# 4EN3AAA85X1000150. E-One 

“Hush” Mileage N/A, Stress fractures in body, Rust in tank and plumbing. 

Estimated value approximately $5,000.00. 

 
• Utility 71,  1991 pickup truck, License # 07035D, VIN# 2GTEC19Z1M1532632. 

GMC light duty (1/2-ton) pickup. Engine smokes.  Paint is coming off hood and 

roof, Interior is rough. Estimated Value approximately $1,500.00. 

 

    



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D5) 

Touch Date: 06/10/2020 
Brief Date:       07/07/2020 
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Reading of Resolution 

Department:  Public Works 
 
Presented By:  Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Basin 3 Final Sewer Rehabilitation 
  Final Acceptance 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  - Resolution No 1162-0620 
  - PowerPoint Presentation    

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Initial design of the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation project began in July of 2012. After completion of the initial 
design, the project was placed on hold due to financial uncertainties stemming from the poor economic climate 
at that time.   
In anticipation of moving forward with the project, Public Works and Engineering staff began reviewing the 
design plans in December of 2016. At that time, the project had an engineer’s estimated construction cost of 
$7,732,590.08. Of that total, over $4,000,000.00 was expected to come in the form of a loan from the 
Department of Ecology. Several issues were uncovered during the staff review and it was determined that the 
plans were inadequate for construction. 
The Public Works and Engineering staff began working on revised plans and specs immediately, while also 
seeking additional grant funding to reduce the amount of debt the project would incur. With staff revisions in 
place and additional grant funding secured ($4,365,000 from the Department of Commerce and $1,973,882 
from the Department of Ecology), the project went out to bid in January of 2018. At the February 7th bid 
opening, Pivetta Brothers Construction Inc. submitted the low bid of $5,982,441.66 and was awarded the 
project on March 6, 2018. 
Construction commenced April 2, 2018 with 300 working days allowed. By early 2019 it became evident the 
project was going to be coming in under budget, leaving nearly one million dollars in grant funds unspent. Staff 
reached out to the Department of Commerce to receive approval for the remaining grant dollars to be expended 
on constructing new sidewalks and ADA ramps in the project area, citing the additional tasks, although not part 
of the original bid, are required per the WSDOT Standards and our own City Standards, therefore applicable to 
the scope of the project. After the Department of Commerce agreed, staff brought the proposal to the Council 
and in February 2019, Council approved for the remaining grant funds to be expended on ADA compliant curbs 
and sidewalks, as well as allowed for an additional $200,000 be set aside as contingency for potential overruns. 
The added project elements provided the Contractor with 90 additional working days to complete the project. 
The final pay estimate was signed in April 2020, completing construction in 383 working days, seven days 
under Contract, and at a total cost of $6,502,381.49, including tax.  
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:   

 
Total Authorized Funding ($6,338,882 in grants + $200,000 contingency) $6,538,882 

Final Construction Cost $6,502,381.49 
Contingency Remaining $36,500.51 

 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends a reading of Resolution No. 1162-0620 and: “I move to authorize the Mayor to sign 
Resolution Number 1162-0620, accepting the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project as final and complete”. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1162-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, ACCEPTING THE 
BASIN 3 SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT AS FINAL AND COMPLETE 

 

WHEREAS, a Contract for the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project was awarded to Pivetta 
Brothers Construction in the amount of $5,982,441.66 on March 6, 2018, following a 
competitive bidding process; and 

WHEREAS, construction of the project commenced April 2, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, a change order, approved by the City Council on February 19, 2019, increased the 
scope and cost of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project was determined to have achieved Physical Completion by the Project 
Engineer on April 16, 2020; and  

WHERAS, the final amount paid to the Contractor is $6,502,381.49; and 

WHEREAS, all documentation required by the Contract and required by law has been 
furnished by the Contractor. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton does hereby declare 
that the Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project is accepted as final and complete. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



Basin 3 Sewer Rehabilitation Project
Final Acceptance

1



Goal: To reduce Inflow and Infiltration 
(I&I) in the Basin 3 Sewer area

Infiltration occurs when groundwater seeps into sewer pipes through 
cracks, leaky pipe joints, and/or deteriorated manholes.
Inflow is stormwater that enters the sewer system through catch basins, 
roof drains, basement sump pumps, or foundation drains that are illegally 
connected to the sewer.
When ground water and stormwater enter the City’s sewer collection 
systems, the piping system can surcharge/overtop and the wastewater 
treatment plant becomes less efficient and can fail leading to a permit 
violation.
2







Project Area Paving

5



Direct Appropriations 
Grants: $4,365,000

Department of Ecology 
Centennial Clean Water 
Grant: $1,974,000

Approved Contingency:
$200,000

Total Funding: $6,539,000
Total Construction Cost: $6,502,381.49

6



4th and Birch

Before

After

7



5th and Laurel

Before

After

8



7th from Alder

Before

After

9



7th from Birch
Before

After
During

10



Birch Looking East

Before

After

11



Birch Looking West

Before

After

12



This Project Completed:
 15,765 Linear Feet of Sewer Main (various sizes and types)

 189 Sewer Laterals (the pipe that connects a home’s or business’ plumbing to 
the City’s sanitary sewer system)

 5,095 Square Yards of Concrete for:
 33 Blocks of Sidewalk
 10,547 Linear Feet of Curb and Gutter
 36 ADA Ramps

 4,931 Tons of Asphalt for:
 36 Blocks, plus Northcliff from W. Birch to W. Poplar, of Roadway Overlay
 36 Blocks of Paved Parking Strips (1 Side = 1 Block)

13



Questions?

14



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D6) 

Touch Date: 06/11/2020  
Brief Date:    07/07/2020    
Action Date:  07/21/2020 

Reading of Resolution 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank 
Design Contract Amendment No. 1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution No. 1163-0620 
- Contract Amend. 1 with tracked 

changes 
- Contract Amend. 1 clean, with 

Exhibits  
- ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe  
- Figure showing potential location of 

reclaimed water tank and existing 
satellite water reclamation plant  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In August of 2018, after completing a formal solicitation process, Council approved a $57,100 contract with 
Gray & Osborne Inc. (G&O) for the design of a new, larger, reclaimed water tank at the Satellite Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. In October of 2018, City staff received word from the Squaxin Island Tribe Water Resources 
Biologist, expressing interest in applying for a grant through the Department of Ecology (ECY) and hoped to 
work with the City to brainstorm eligible projects. It was at that point, City staff requested Gray & Osborne put 
design efforts on hold in anticipation the new reclaimed water tank may be identified as an eligible project. 

 
Squaxin Island Tribe was awarded funds from the Department of Ecology’s Water Resources Streamflow 
Restoration Interim Implementation Grant and in August of 2019, Squaxin Island Tribe signed the funding 
agreement with the Department of Ecology. 

 
In March of 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320, approving an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the 
Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities. The ILA 
defines two tasks to be completed and reimbursed by the Tribe, Task 1 for the planning and design of an in-
ground storage tank for reclaimed water (which will be achieved with this Contract Amendment), and Task 2 for 
the planning and design to redirect sewer flows. 

 
With the ILA and funding assistance from the Tribe in place, staff is ready to have Gray & Osborne, Inc. resume 
design efforts of the reclaimed water tank, which brings forth Contract Amendment No. 1. This Amendment 
provides additional scope to better align the project with Task 1 identified in the ILA with the Tribe, $38,900 in 
additional funding to pay for the added scope, and extends the contract end date to December 31, 2021. The 
Exhibits attached to Contract Amendment No. 1 further define the added Scope of Work, outlines the schedule 
of anticipated milestones, as well as provides a table explaining the additional task elements and the 
associated estimated costs. 

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A   
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 

Contract Execution Expiration Amount New Total Contract Amount 
Original 9/4/2018 6/30/2019 $57,100 $57,100 
Proposed Amend. No 1 7/21/2020 12/31/2021 + $38,900 $96,000 

 
Only $2,831.09 of the original contract has been expended to date. Payments made to the consultant for 
design efforts will be submitted to Squaxin Island Tribe for full reimbursement of all of the project costs, as 
stated in the ILA with the Tribe. 
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends a reading of Resolution No. 1163-0620 and: “I move to adopt Resolution No. 1163-0620, a 
resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Reclaimed Tank Design Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc.”. 



RESOLUTION NO. 1163-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE DESIGN OF THE SATELLITE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT RECLAIMED TANK 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Contract on September 4, 2018 with Gray & Osborne, 
Inc. for the design of a new reclaimed water tank at the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant; 
and 

WHEREAS, in October 2018, City staff placed design efforts on hold following discussions 
with the Squaxin Island Tribe and the possibility of the Tribe providing funding assistance for 
the project; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320 approving the 
Interlocal Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and 
wastewater conveyance facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recognized the current Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc. needs to be 
amended to provide additional scope, budget, and time, to better align the project with the 
tasks identified in the Interlocal Agreement with the Squaxin Island Tribe; and  

WHERAS, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has submitted Amendment No. 1 to the current contract to 
complete design efforts of the Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant Reclaimed Tank for a new 
cost not to exceed $96,000. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager 
is authorized to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract 
with Gray & Osborne, Inc. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



W:\Engineering\PROJECTS\000_Current Projects\Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank\Design\003_Contracts 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
September 4, 2018 and identified as Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The consultant shall provide detailed design and construction documents for the Satellite WWTP 
Reclaimed Water Tank, as described on Exhibits A and C attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if fully set forth in this contract. In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all 
times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance of such services and 
the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable prevailing wage 
requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed 
$57,10096,000, ($57,100 as shown in Exhibit A, Part 2, and $38,900 as shown in Exhibit C, Part 2). If 
additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit C, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending June 30, 2019December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated 
under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



W:\Engineering\PROJECTS\000_Current Projects\Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank\Design\003_Contracts 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
September 4, 2018 and identified as Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The consultant shall provide detailed design and construction documents for the Satellite WWTP 
Reclaimed Water Tank, as described on Exhibits A and C attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference as if fully set forth in this contract. In performing such services, the Consultant shall at all 
times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance of such services and 
the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable prevailing wage 
requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $96,000, 
($57,100 as shown in Exhibit A, Part 2, and $38,900 as shown in Exhibit C, Part 2). If additional task 
authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit C, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under the 
provisions hereinafter specified. 
 
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



G&O #18287.00 Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT C 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

TASK 1 – ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 

RECLAIMED WATER TANK 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

The City plans to construct a new reclaimed water storage tank at the site of the Satellite 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) to allow it to supply peak reclaimed water 

demands, including augmenting the headwaters of Goldsborough Creek.  The City is 

seeking to construct a new storage tank with a volume of up to 750,000 gallons.  

Gray & Osborne, Inc. will prepare a predesign report to provide recommendations for the 

location, size, type, configuration, system hydraulics, and piping configuration for a new 

reclaimed water storage tank at the City’s Satellite WWTP site.  Gray & Osborne will 

prepare preliminary design documents, including preliminary engineering drawings and 

cost estimates for the reclaimed water storage tank.  The drawings will include survey of 

the Satellite WWTP site, site layout, plan and profile sheets, and mechanical drawings of 

pumps, piping, valves, and equipment. 

 

This scope is additive to the previously approved scope of work for Satellite WWTP 

Reclaimed Water Tank Design Services approved by the City in September 2018. 

 

PROJECT SCOPE 

 

The scope of work includes the following tasks. 

 

Prepare Predesign Report and Preliminary Design 

 

A. Establish projected capital and operating costs for new reclaimed water 

tank. 

 

B. Prepare draft Predesign Report, incorporating findings of Subtask A and 

Tasks 1, 2, and 3 from the previously approved scope of work. 

 

C. Review draft Predesign Report in a meeting with the City and Tribe. 

 

D. Complete topographical survey of preferred reclaimed water storage tank 

site at the Satellite WWTP. 

 

E. Complete Preliminary Design Drawings for the reclaimed water storage 

tank, including tank site plan and sections and mechanical drawings of 



G&O #18287.00 Page 2 of 2 

pumps, piping, valves, and equipment at the tank and Satellite WWTP 

site. 

 

F. Review final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings in a 

meeting with the City and Tribe. 

 

G. Submit final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to 

Ecology. 

 

DELIVERABLES 

 

● Draft Predesign Report (three hard copies, one PDF copy) 

 

● Final Predesign Report with Preliminary Design Drawings (three hard 

copies, one PDF copy) 

 

BUDGET 

 

Based on the scope of work described above, the total estimated cost for completing the 

engineering services tasks is $38,900, as shown in the attached Exhibit C Part 2. 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Milestone Date 
Notice to Proceed August 3, 2020 
Draft Predesign Report to City and Tribe December 10, 2020 
Meet with City and Tribe to Review Draft Report January 13, 2021 
Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to City 

and Tribe 
March 19, 2021 

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Final Predesign Report and 

Preliminary Design Drawings 
April 7, 2021 

Submit Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings 

to Ecology 
May 21, 2021 

 



Principal

Hours

Project 

Manager

Hours

Project  

Engineer 

Hours

Structural 

Engineer

Hours

Electrical 

Engineer

Hours

AutoCAD/

GIS 

Technician

Hours

Professional 

Land 

Surveyor

Hours

Survey 

Crew 

(2 person)

Hours

1 Prepare Predesign Report 1 2 12 4 2

2 Preliminary Design Drawings 6 10 80 32 12 80 8 40

7 12 92 36 14 80 8 40

$175 $170 $135 $140 $165 $85 $145 $185

$1,225 $2,040 $12,420 $5,040 $2,310 $6,800 $1,160 $7,400

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 38,395$         

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (mileage @ current IRS rate) 505$              

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 38,900$         

* Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

ENGINEERING SERVICES

EXHIBIT C PART 2

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

City of Shelton - Task 1 - Additional Engineering Services for Reclaimed Water Tank

G&O #18287.00 Page 1 of 1

































































 

 

dmiller
Callout
POTENTIAL RECLAIMED WATER TANK LOCATION

dmiller
Oval

dmiller
Callout
EXISTING SATELLITE WATER RECLAMATION PLANT



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D7) 

Touch Date:  06/11/2020  
Brief Date:     07/07/2020    
Action Date:   07/21/2020 

Reading of Resolution 

Department: Public Works 
  
Presented By: Ken Gill 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:   PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 

Sewer Comp Pan Contract 
Amendment No. 1 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Resolution 1164-0620 
- Contract Amend. 1 with tracked 

changes 
- Contract Amend. 1 clean, with 

Exhibits   
- ILA with Squaxin Island Tribe 
- Figure showing potential north 

diversion area  

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
In February of 2019, following a formal solicitation process, Council approved a $320,000 contract with Gray & 
Osborne, Inc. (G&O) for the completion of the Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update which will replace the 
current adopted comprehensive plan that was completed in 2013. The original contract identified two tasks, 
Task 1 for the completion of the Sewer Comp Plan and related efforts, and Task 2 for the development of a 
Facilities Plan, which will identify what is needed at the current wastewater facilities to upgrade and to increase 
capacity and reliability. 

 
In March of 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320, approving an Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the 
Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and wastewater conveyance facilities. The ILA 
defines two tasks to be completed and reimbursed by the Tribe, Task 1 for the planning and design of an in-
ground storage tank for reclaimed water (not applicable to this Contract), and Task 2 for the planning and 
design to potentially redirect sewer flows from the main plant to the satellite (membrane filter) treatment plant. 

 
With the ILA and funding assistance from the Tribe in place, staff and the consultant recognized a need to 
amend the current contract. This amendment provides additional scope to better align the project with Task 2 
elements identified in the ILA with the Tribe, $176,000 in additional funding by the Tribe to pay for the added 
scope, and extends the contract end date with Gray and Osborne to December 31, 2021. 

 
Exhibit E of the contract amendment defines the Scope of Work included in the additional task, as well as 
outlines the schedule of anticipated milestones. Exhibit F of the contract amendment provides a table 
explaining the elements of the new task and the estimated costs associated.  

  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
N/A   
 
 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 

Contract Execution Expiration Contract Task 
# and Amount 

Related ILA 
Task # and 
Reimbursement  

Net Change 
This 
Amendment 

New Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Original 2/19/2019 6/1/2020 

Task 1 - 
$200,000 N/A 

N/A $320,000 Task 2 - 
$120,000 

ILA Task 2 – 
100% 

Reimbursement 

Proposed 
Amend. #1 07/21/2020 12/31/2021 Task 3 - 

$176,000 

ILA Task 2 – 
100% 

Reimbursement 
+ $176,000 $496,000 

 
Only efforts completed under tasks 2 and 3 of the Sewer Comp Plan Contract and Amendment are eligible to 
be submitted to Squaxin Island for reimbursement, which totals $296,000 of the new $496,000 contract. The 
remaining $200,000 for Task 1 is City funded work approved in the 2019 Budget. Unexpended funds this year 
will carry over to the 2021 budget for completion of the project.  
 

PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the Public Works Department. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends a reading of Resolution No. 1164-0620 and: “I move to adopt Resolution Number  
1164-0620, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Sewer Comprehensive 
Plan Update Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc.”. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1164-0620 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GRAY & OSBORNE, INC. FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE SEWER 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council approved a Contract on February 19, 2019 with Gray & Osborne, 
Inc. for the completion of an update to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan; and 

WHEREAS, City staff had discussions with the Squaxin Island Tribe regarding the possibility of 
the Tribe providing funding assistance for certain elements of the project; and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Council adopted Resolution No. 1156-0320 approving the 
Interlocal Agreement with Squaxin Island Tribe for planning and design of reclaimed water and 
wastewater conveyance facilities; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recognized the current Contract with Gray & Osborne, Inc. needs to be 
amended to provide additional scope, budget, and time, to better align the project with the 
tasks identified in the Interlocal Agreement with the Squaxin Island Tribe; and  

WHERAS, Gray & Osborne, Inc. has submitted Amendment No. 1 to the current contract to 
complete the update to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan for a new cost not to exceed $496,000. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager 
is authorized to sign Amendment No. 1 to the Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update Contract with 
Gray & Osborne, Inc. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 21st day of July 2020. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



W:\Public Works\Contracting and Procurement\Professional Services Contracts\2019\Sewer Comp Plan Update\004_Contract 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
February 19, 2019 and identified as 2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The Consultant shall provide an update to the Sewer System Comprehensive Plan, approvable by the 
Department of Ecology (DOE) in compliance with WAC 173-240, as well as the services as described 
in Exhibits A and E attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth in this 
Contract. Up to fifteen (15) hard copies and electronic copies (PDF and Word document) of the final 
draft will be provided to the City for use and for final approval by DOE.  In performing such services, the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance 
of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable 
prevailing wage requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $320496,000 
($200,000 for Task 1 and $120,000 for Task 2, as identified in Exhibit B, and $176,000 for Task 3, as 
identified in Exhibit F). If additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be 
requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit D, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending June 1, 2020December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under 
the provisions hereinafter specified.   
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



W:\Public Works\Contracting and Procurement\Professional Services Contracts\2019\Sewer Comp Plan Update\004_Contract 

Amendment to Contract No.1 
 

 
Agency   City of Shelton 
Name of Project  2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update 
 
City of Shelton desires to amend the agreement entered into with Gray & Osborne, Inc. executed on 
February 19, 2019 and identified as 2019 Sewer Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this amendment 
as follows: 
 
Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is 
hereby amended to read: 
The Consultant shall provide an update to the Sewer System Comprehensive Plan, approvable by the 
Department of Ecology (DOE) in compliance with WAC 173-240, as well as the services as described 
in Exhibits A and E attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth in this 
Contract. Up to fifteen (15) hard copies and electronic copies (PDF and Word document) of the final 
draft will be provided to the City for use and for final approval by DOE.  In performing such services, the 
Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the performance 
of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; this includes applicable 
prevailing wage requirements. 
 
Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby 
amended to read: 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt of an 
approvable invoice as well as the form titled, Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
The Consultant shall provide engineering services for this project at a cost not to exceed $496,000 
($200,000 for Task 1 and $120,000 for Task 2, as identified in Exhibit B, and $176,000 for Task 3, as 
identified in Exhibit F). If additional task authorizations are issued, a new scope and budget will be 
requested. 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit D, Tax Identification Number, to the City prior to or 
along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required to have a City Business license 
and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 
 
Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read: 
This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period commencing on the date of the last 
signature affixed hereto and ending December 31, 2021, unless sooner terminated under the provisions 
hereinafter specified.   
 

 
DATED this ____ day of _____________________, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Contractor Signature  Mayor Dorcy 
 
___________________________________ ATTEST:  
Print Name and Title   
  _________________________________ 
  City Clerk Nault 



G&O #19239.00 Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT E

SCOPE OF WORK

CITY OF SHELTON

TASK 3 – ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR

REDIRECTION OF SEWER FLOWS

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The City plans to complete a predesign report and preliminary design for redirection of

raw sewage produced in north Shelton neighborhoods (Mountain View area and possibly

new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights, and DARCI development areas) from the

City’s main Fairmont Wastewater Treatment Plant (on Oakland Bay) to the City’s

Satellite Reclaimed Water Plant (RWP) near the airport.

A significant portion of the City’s wastewater in north Shelton is currently treated and

routed directly to Oakland Bay. Currently, that flow predominantly comes from the

Mountain View Basin; however, in the near future, additional north Shelton flow is

expected to come from the new Shelton Hills, Goldsborough Heights, and DARCI

development areas. Redirecting that water (or other from growth in the north Shelton

area) to the Satellite RWP would make it available high up in the Goldsborough

watershed as a benefit to aquifers and streams and wetlands.  (Preliminary estimates are

that 500,000 gallons per day of wastewater is produced in the Mountain View area.

Current and future wastewater flows will be further evaluated in the facility planning

process.)

This scope is additive to the previously approved scope of work for the 2019 Sewer

Comprehensive Plan Update approved by the City in February 2019.

PROJECT SCOPE

The scope of work includes the following tasks.

Prepare Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings

A. Complete a siting study for a new pump station to convey north Shelton

wastewater to the Satellite WRP.  Include preliminary geotechnical and

archaeological evaluation of the site.

B. Provide detailed evaluation of alternatives for a force main to convey

wastewater from north Shelton to the Satellite WRP and select a final

alternative.



G&O #19239.00 Page 2 of 3

C. Provide preliminary wetland and archaeological evaluation of conveyance

routes utilizing available mapping and data.  No field work will be

completed.

D. Finalize design criteria (flows and head) for the new pump station.

E. Develop conceptual layout for the pump station.

F. Establish projected capital and operating costs for the new pump station

and force main.

G. Prepare draft Predesign Report incorporating findings from Subtasks A

through F.

H. Review draft Predesign Report in a meeting with the City and Tribe.

I. Complete topographical survey of preferred pump station site and

preferred conveyance route.

J. Complete Preliminary Design Drawings for the pump station site and

conveyance line. Drawings will include survey of site and alignments,

pump station site plan and sections, plan and profile sheets of force main,

and mechanical drawings of pumps, piping, valves, and equipment at the

pump station site.

K. Review final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings in a

meeting with the City and Tribe.

L. Submit final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to

Ecology.

DELIVERABLES

· Draft Predesign Report (three hard copies, one PDF copy)

· Final Predesign Report with Preliminary Design Drawings (three hard

copies, one PDF copy)

BUDGET

Based on the scope of work described above, the total estimated cost for completing the

Engineering Services tasks is $176,000 as shown in the attached Exhibit F.



G&O #19239.00 Page 3 of 3

SCHEDULE

Milestone Date

Notice to Proceed August 3, 2020

Geotechnical Evaluation Complete September 28, 2020

Draft Predesign Report to City and Tribe December 10, 2020

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Draft Report January 13, 2021

Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings to City

and Tribe
March 19, 2021

Meet with City and Tribe to Review Final Predesign Report and

Preliminary Design Drawings
April 7, 2021

Submit Final Predesign Report and Preliminary Design Drawings

to Ecology
May 21, 2021



Principal

Hours

Project

Manager

Hours

Project

Engineer

Hours

Civil

Engineer

Hours

Structural

Engineer

Hours

Electrical

Engineer

Hours

AutoCAD/

GIS

Technician

Hours

Professional

Land

Surveyor

Hours

Survey

Crew

(2 person)

Hours

1 Prepare Predesign Report 16 32 96 120 14 12 64 8

2 Preliminary Design Drawings 24 80 136 160 40 40 288 24 80

40 112 232 280 54 52 352 32 80

$175 $170 $135 $120 $140 $165 $85 $145 $185

$7,000 $19,040 $31,320 $33,600 $7,560 $8,580 $29,920 $4,640 $14,800

Total Fully Burdened Labor Cost: 156,460$

Direct Non-Salary Cost:

Mileage & Expenses (mileage @ current IRS rate) 840$

Subconsultants:

Geotechnical (PanGEO, Inc.) 17,000$

Subconsultant Overhead (10%) 1,700$

TOTAL ESTIMATED COST: 176,000$

*

EXHIBIT F

ENGINEERING SERVICES

SCOPE AND ESTIMATED COST

City of Shelton - Task 3 - Additional Engineering Services for Redirection of Sewer Flows

Tasks

Hour Estimate:

Estimated Fully Burdened Billing Rate:*

Fully Burdened Labor Cost:

Actual labor cost will be based on each employee's actual rate.  Estimated rates are for determining total estimated cost only.  Fully burdened billing rates include direct salary cost, overhead, and profit.

G&O #19239.00 Page 1 of 1

































































3PRW

I s l a n dL a k e

GooseLake

O a k l a n d
B a y

Potential North Diversion Area

15-F1

PORT

27-F1 16-F1

7K-F2

7K

7A

17-F1

14A-F1

5B

18-F1

3A

7H

WSP

19-F1

7G

6B

6K

1A

7E

7I

WCC

21-F1

13-F1

7K-F1

6I

20-F1

7K-F3

4A

7J

22-F1

MILL

5A

8D-F1

7A-F3

22-F2

7E-F1

7C
7D

6J

17-F2

6H

7L

12-F1

8A

6J-F2

7A-F2

5B-F1

10-F1

6C

25-F1
9A

23-F1

24-F1

8C

2G

8D

11-F1

3B

5C

6G
6D

26-F1

7L-F1

8B 8C-F1

2C

6A

2E

3C

7B

6I-F1
6J-F1

7A-F1

6E

2A2D
2B

CITY OF SHELTON

NORTH DIVERSION AREA

M:\Shelton\19239.00 Sewer Comp Plan\GIS\MXDs\Project MXDs\NorthDiversion.mxd

Legend
3PRW Water Reclamation Plant

Gravity Main
Washington Corrections Center
Washington State Patrol Academy
Port of Shelton Sanderson Field
Port of Shelton - John's Prarie
City of Shelton
UGA
UGA Expansion Area
Shelton Parcels

³
0 3,600 7,2001,800

Feet

Source: Mason County GIS, City of Dupont, Puget Sound LiDAR
Consortium

Sewer Basins
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25
26
27
MILL
PORT
WCC
WSP


	1 Agenda_20200721
	2 2020 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20200721
	4 Draft Minutes_20200421
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT
	ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING
	May 5, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.

	5 Draft Minutes-20200602
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL PRESENT
	ADJOURN
	As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:57 p.m.

	6 Briefing_Olympic Region
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	7 Olympic Region Local Programs Project Administration Agreement
	8 2019-2021 State Transportation Budget
	9 Preliminary Plan
	10 Rotating Art Briefing 072120
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	11 Artwork 072120
	12 SRO Ordinance No 1949-0220 Briefing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	13 SRO Ordinance No. 1949-0220 final
	14 Lease Agreement_PANZA_20190522
	15 Briefing_Master Fee Schedule_20200707
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 Master Fee Schedule Resolution No1160-0620
	17 2020 Fee Schedule_Ex A update by jn 20200707
	18 Briefing - Surplus Vehicles
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	19 Resolution No. 1161-0620 Surplus of Vehicles-Police  Fire
	20 Vehicle Info - PD
	21 Vehicle Info - Fire
	22 Briefing_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	23 Resolution 1162-0620_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	24 PowerPoint_Basin 3 Final Acceptance
	Slide Number 1
	Goal: To reduce Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) in the Basin 3 Sewer area
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Project Area						Paving
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	This Project Completed:
	Questions?

	25 Briefing_Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amendment No. 1
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	26 Resolution 1163-0620_Satellite WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design Contract Amend. No. 1
	27 Contract Amend 1 with Track Changes
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	28 Contract Amend 1, Clean with Exhibits
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	29 ILA_Squaxin Goldsborough Creek
	30 Recl Water Tank Figure
	31 Briefing_Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amendment No. 1
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	32 Resolution 1164-0620_Sewer Comp Plan Contract Amend. No. 1
	33 Contract Amend 1 with Track Changes
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	34 Contract Amend 1, Clean with Exhibits
	Section 1 of the Contract for Services, Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant is hereby amended to read:
	Section 6 of the Contract for Services, Compensation and Method of Payment is hereby amended to read:
	Section 8 of the Contract for Services, Duration of Agreement is hereby amended to read:

	35 ILA_Squaxin Goldsborough Creek
	36 NorthDiversionArea



